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What Do I Open? 
Remember that your goal throughout the auction is to answer these questions: 

• Do we have an 8-card major fit? (Yes / No / Maybe) 

• Do we have strength for game? (Yes / No / Maybe) 

• Do we have slam? (Yes / No / Maybe) 

 

Rather than focusing on specific bids, what we want to do is identify the nature of our hand, then figure out how to go about describing it 

within the structure of our bidding system, while taking partner’s responses and opponents’ interference into consideration.  This consists 

of two components: Shape and strength. 

 

For shape, we consider a balanced hand to have 2 to 4 cards in each major and 2 to 5 cards in each minor.  If our hand is balanced, it’s im-

portant to let partner know that as soon as possible.  If our hand is unbalanced, it’s important to identify particularly long suits or our sec-

ond suit(s) as soon as possible. 

 

We evaluate strength based on high-card points (HCPs) and length points.  For length points, opener can add a point for a good 5-card suit, 

2 for a good 6-card suit, etc.   

 

Later in the auction, if we, as opener, decide to play in partner’s suit, then we can  add dummy points: 3 for a void, 2 for a singleton, 1 for a 

doubleton.  In addition, if we have reason to believe that partner has a 5+ card suit, we can add 1 for each trump over 3. 

 

Here’s the general strength valuation for opener: 

• Non-opener: 0 to 11.  Pass unless you have a good long suit and can pre-empt. 

• Basic opener: 12 to 14.  Open and keep the bidding as low as possible. 

• Medium-strength opener: ~15 to ~18.  Open, then invite game if possible. 

• Strong opener: 19 to 21.  Open, then force to game, even over a minimum opener. 

• Very strong opener: 22+ Open 2C. 

 

While we can use these formulas to come up with precise numbers, bidding is largely about judgement: How many tricks do you think you 

can take in light of what you see in your own hand and what you hear listening to the auction.  As you progress, you will develop skills to  

better understand how your hand improves or gets worse based on the bidding.  We’ll follow up on this in a later class. 

 

Once you decide on your shape and strength, use the chart on the next page as a guideline to decide on a plan for the auction. 

A note on style 

There are two distinct approaches for 2/1 auctions among 2/1 bidders.  While there’s a certain amount of religion around this topic, let’s 

agree that both approaches are perfectly workable.  We can construct any number of hands that show off the strengths / weaknesses of 

one approach or the other.  The most important thing is to discuss with your partner and agree on approach. 

 

• Approach 1: If opener rebids the first suit as in the sample auction 1H - 2D - 2H: 

 Opener does NOT promise a 6-card suit  (Opener must bid the suit a 3rd time to show 6+, e.g. 1H - 2D - 2H - 2NT - 3H.) 

 The default bid with nothing else in particular to say is 2 of opener’s major. 

 2NT shows  a semi-balanced hand and stoppers in the unbid suits 

 If opener bids a suit at the 3 level (e.g. 1H - 2D - 3C), opener promises extra strength (a medium+ opener). 

• Approach 2: If opener rebids the first suit as in the sample auction 1H - 2D - 2H: 

 Opener promises a 6-card+ suit 

 Opener can bid a suit above opener’s suit (e.g. 1H - 2D - 3C) with a minimum opener; this does NOT suggest extra strength 

 W/O a 6-card suit or a 2nd suit, opener generally bids 2NT.  This suggests a semi-balanced hand with stoppers in the unbid 

suits.  In some cases, opener has no other bid available and bids 2NT even without stoppers. 

 

In the Pacific Northwest, Approach 1 is the most common approach, and that’s what we’ll focus on in this class. 
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Balanced: 2-4 in each major and  2-5 in each minor Unbalanced Hand: 5+ card major OR 6+ card minor OR shortness 

0 to 11 Pass 

12 to 14 Open 1 of a minor, then  rebid 1 of a major or 1NT.   

• Which minor? Open your longest minor.  W/  4-4 or 

5-5, open diamonds; w/ 3-3 open clubs 

15 to 17 Open 1 NT 

18 to 19 Open 1 of a minor, then rebid 2NT 

• Which minor?  See above. 

20 to 21 Open 2NT 

22 to 23, 

24 to 26, 

27+ 

Open 2C, then rebid 2NT, 3NT or 4NT 

5 to 11  With a good 6 card suit, open a weak 2 (D, H or S, 

not C…  2C is reserved for a strong hand). 

 With a good 7+ card suit, open with a pre-empt 

(any suit). 

 With 2 good suits (5+, honors in each suit), follow 

the Rule of 20+2: Open if HCPs plus length of the 2 

suits is 20 or more AND you have 2+ quick tricks.  

(2 aces, or AK in one suit, or A plus 2 Ks, or KQ plus 

KQ) 

 Otherwise Pass. 

12 to 21 If you have 2 long suits of equal length, bid the highest 

(S, H, D then C). Otherwise, open 1 of your longest suit. 

 

Exception1:  1 of a major promises *5*.  If you don’t 

have a 5 card suit (i.e. if your hand is 4441), open 1 of a 

minor (diamonds if 44 in the minors). 

Exception2: If you have a weak opener (12-14) with 5 of 

a major and 6 of a minor, open 1 of the major.) 

 

Next: 

 12-14:  

 Rebid 1NT if 1NT is available and your 

hand is  semi-balanced.   

 Rebid 2NT ONLY if the all of the following 

are true: Responder has made a 2/1 bid 

AND your hand is semi-balanced AND  you 

have stoppers in the unbid suits. 

 Otherwise rebid your first suit if you have 

extra length.   

 Otherwise bid a new suit below 2 of your 

1st suit.   

 If nothing else fits, rebid your first suit.   

 Very important: Do NOT bid above 2 of 

your suit (except 2NT per above)... this is 

VERY important.) 

 15-16/17: Same as above but DON’T rebid 1NT 

(which limits your hand to 14 points).  You may 

have another chance to show extra values. 

 17/18-19:  Bid 2NT if semi-balanced.  Otherwise 

rebid 3 of your suit if you have extra length (6+).  

Otherwise bid a  new suit, even if it’s a reverse 

above your first suit. 

 19+: Rebid 3NT if semi-balanced.  Otherwise rebid 

4 of your suit with a 7-card suit.  Otherwise jump-

shift or reverse. 

22+ Open 2C, then follow similar strategy as above. 

Opener’s Plan 

Definitions: 

• Jump-shift: After an opening 1-bid, a jump to a new suit to show 

extra values.  Forcing to game.  Promises equal length suits or 

longer 1st suit (at least 4 in 2nd suit).  Examples: 1S-1N-3C.  1C-

1H-2S.   

• Pre-empt: An opening bid of 3 (or 4) S, H or D or C that promises 

a weak hand (6 to 10 high-card points) and 7 (or 8) cards in your 

long suit. 

• Reverse: After an opening 1-bid, introducing a new suit  such 

that responder must bid the 1st suit at a higher level.  Forcing 

for 1 round (NOT forcing to game).  Promises longer 1st suit and 

(usually) at least 4 in 2nd suit.  Examples: 1C-1S-2H.  1C-1N-2S. 

• Semi-balanced: A hand that’s almost balanced.  No voids, no 

singletons, preferably but no necessarily honors (A, K, Q, J or T) 

in short suits. 

• Weak 2: An opening bid of 2S, 2H or 2D (NOT 2C) that promises 

a weak hand (6 to 10 high-card points) and exactly 6 cards in 

your long suit, along with 2 of the top 3 honors or 3 of the top 5 

honors in the suit. 


